
 

 

Notice & Agenda 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 

Tuesday, July 2, 2019 

9:00 AM 

LEC Meeting Room – 301 14th St N, Benson, MN 

 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 
 

        Time     Reference                                      Item                                             
 

 9:00 a.m.  Call to Order and Roll Call  

 
 

   9:01 a.m.                     Approve Agenda 

  9:02 a.m.  Consent Agenda  

  1-2  (1) Minutes from the June 18, 2019 Regular Meeting  

  3-4  (2) Minutes from the June 18, 2019 Board of Equalization 

meeting  

   
      

 9:04 a.m.  Consider Approval of Commissioner warrants and review Auditor 

warrants reviewed 

 9:05 a.m.                  Commissioner and Board reports  

 9:25 a.m.  County Administrator report   

 9:30 a.m.  Citizens Comments 

 

 9:45 a.m.  Jen Johnson, Safe Avenues  

  5-6  Safe Avenues Update 

 

 10:00 a.m.  Vicki Syverson, HRA Executive Director 

  7  Consider approving Swift County HRA Board of Commissioners 

request for a special consideration for spending up to $7,500 

towards a residential demolition 

 

 10:10 a.m.  Catie Lee, Human Services Director  

  8-10  Consider Approving Resolutions 19-07-31 and 19-07-32 for 

Families and Children Medicaid and MNCare and MSHO/MSC 

+ PrimeWest Health Proposal for 2020. 

    

 10:25 a.m.  Other Business     

      

 

     10:30 a.m.   Adjournment   



 SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

June 18, 2019 

  
Chairman Hendrickx called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM with all members present. Also present: 

County Administrator Kelsey Baker, County Auditor Kim Saterbak, Terri Orr, and several others from the 

general public. 

 

Chairman Hendrickx asked if there were any changes or additions to the agenda. Commissioner P. 

Peterson had one addition under Jennifer Frost, a discussion on the Grow Building. There were no other 

changes.   

 

06-18-19-01 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to approve the 

agenda as amended. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

06-18-19-02 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve the Consent 

Agenda items: (1) Approval of Minutes from the June 4, 2019 Regular Meeting, (2) Approval of Joan Fust 

to the HRA Board of Commissioners to complete Lindsey Bruer’s term. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

06-18-19-03 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the 

Commissioner warrants as follows: County General Revenue, $33,318.31; Solid Waste Fund, $39,558.70; 

Road and Bridge, $839,634.39; County Ditches Fund, $2,034.99; State Fund Agency, $13,294.70; which 

includes the following bills over $2,000: Albany Recycling Center, $2,538.40; Ascheman Oil, $2,548.75; 

Central Specialties Inc., $726,973.30; Contech Engineered Solutions LLC, $12,692.36; Counties 

Providing Technology, $6,342.40; Duininck Inc., $73,031.30; E & M Electric LLP, $2,351.39; Hawleys 

Inc., $2,404.33; Midwest Machinery Co., $2,530.10; Newman Traffic Signs, $10,923.46; Pflipsen 

Trucking LLC, $16,175.92; St Paul Port Authority, $13,294.70; Swift County DAC, $2,175.12; Swift 

County Monitor News, $2,414.37; Waste Management of Northern Minnesota, $13,949.32. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Board and Committee Reports were given as follows: Commissioner P. Peterson reported on Demolition 

Committee, Policy meeting and 6W Corrections. Commissioner E. Pederson reported on Joint Ditch #9 

meeting, AMC District meeting and Soil and Water Conservation District. Chairman Hendrickx reported 

on 6W Corrections, Demolition Committee, PrimeWest, DNR (GIA) Grant in Aide meeting and AMC 

District meeting. Commissioner Fox reported on Joint Ditch #9 meeting, PrimeWest, Wellness 

Committee, District meeting and Private Industry Council. Commissioner Rudningen reported on AMC 

District meeting, Emergency Service Radio Board, Glacial Ridge Scenic Byway and Policy meeting. 

 

Administrator Kelsey Baker reported on the Hospital meeting, HRA conference call for Local Housing 

Trust Fund, Demolition Committee, Personnel Policy meeting, AMC District meeting, Insurance meeting, 

MACA Executive Committee, Joe Tschida the new Swift County Assessor and Enhancing the 

Organization Committee. 

  

Chairman Hendrickx asked for Citizens comments: Mark Hughes had concerns on BWSR bill, meeting 

times, fees for OHV Park, paying for the Justice Center if built and deferred maintenance of buildings. 

 

Dave Barrett on behalf of the KMS Trail Group requested a letter of support from the Swift County Board 

for a proposed recreational trail connecting the towns of Murdock and Kerkhoven MN. 

 

06-18-19-04 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve a letter 

of support for a proposed recreational trail connection the towns of Murdock and Kerkhoven MN. A brief 

discussion was held. Motion carried unanimously. 

1



 

RDA Director Jennifer Frost and HRA Director Vicki Syverson requested approval of authorizing interim 

funding to the HRA from County reserves in an amount not to exceed $410,000 for the time period of 

2020-2021 (two years). This authorization will be contingent on the HRA being awarded a 2019 

Affordable Housing Program grant through Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). 

 

06-18-19-05 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve authorizing 

interim funding to the HRA from County reserves in an amount not to exceed $410,000 for the time 

period of 2020-2021 (two years). This authorization will be contingent on the HRA being awarded a 2019 

Affordable Housing Program grant through Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) A brief discussion was 

held. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Administrator Kelsey Baker and RDA Director Jennifer Frost held a discussion on options for the usage of 

the Grow building. No action was taken at this time. 

 

Human Services Director Catie Lee and Fiscal Supervisor Gary Jensen updated the board on the Financial 

Summary and Human Services update.  

 

06-18-19-06 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to adjourn. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:22 PM. 

 

 

 

WITNESSED:  

  

       _____________________________ 

       Gary Hendrickx, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

2



SWIFT COUNTY BOARD OF APPEAL AND EQUALIZATION MINUTES 

June 18, 2019 

  

County Auditor Kim Saterbak called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM with all members present as well 

as County Administrator Kelsey Baker, County Assessor Wayne Knutson, County Assessor Joe 

Tschida, Terri Orr and several others from the general public. 
 

The County Board of Equalization members took an oath to fairly and impartially review market 

values and equalize as fairly as possible all values in the County. 

 

Commissioner Fox nominated Gary Hendrickx as Chair. 

 

06-18-19-01 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to cease and cast a 

unanimous ballot to elect Commissioner Hendrickx as Chairman of the Board of Equalization. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Hendrickx took over the meeting as Chair. 

 

Assessor Knutson presented the board with the two appeals. Appeal number one was 15-0220-000 Deb 

Heggerston appeared at LBAE to express opinion that her land was valued too high. A discussion was 

held. It was agreed to lower the taxable value of the petitioned parcel from $7359 per acre to $7131 per 

acre based on neighboring values. Lowering the total value to $1,935,600. 

 

06-18-19-02 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to accept the 

recommendation brought forth by the County Assessor and the local Board of Appeals and 

Equalization from Pillsbury Township to change value from $7359 per acre to $7131 per acre for 

parcel 15-0220-000. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Assessor Knutson addressed the second appeal which was Donald Skarsten owner of parcel ID  

03-0191-000 requested lower value at LBAE by letter and phone call.  A reduction of $22,000 was 

made at LBAE from $54,000 to $32,000. Parcel is Rural Vacant Land and currently valued at our 

lowest waste value of $800 per acre. Sales are limited of similar land types.  

 

Assessor Knutson presented the 2019 assessed values. 

 

Chairman Hendrickx asked for citizen comments. 

 

Donald Skarsten owner of parcel ID 03-0191-000 had concerns on the assessment of parcel 

03-0191-000. 

 

06-18-19-03 Commissioner E. Pederson moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to accept the 

recommendation brought forth by the County Assessor and the local Board of Appeals and 

Equalization for a reduction of $22,000 was made at LBAE from $54,000 to $32,000. Parcel is Rural. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

06-18-19-04 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to accept the 2019 

final property values as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 

 

3



Assessor Wayne Knutson introduced Joe Tschida to the Board. He is the new Swift County Assessor. 

  

06-18-19-05 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to adjourn the 

Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting. Motion carried unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 

7:28 PM.  

  

WITNESSED:         

       

 _____________________________  

              Gary Hendrickx, Chair  

  

ATTEST:  

  

_____________________________________  

Kimberly Saterbak, County Auditor   

4



   

  Emergency         Criminal Justice       Harmony Visitation          Swift                 McLeod                 Renville            Sexual Assault               Meeker 
 Safe Shelter           Intervention                    Center                   Outreach            Outreach              Outreach         Victims Services           Outreach 
320.235.0962        320.222.4030            320.214.0799         320.842.3206      320.587.7981      320.523.1015      320.262.3829           320.593.0876  
 
Funding Partners                                                                     

                PO Box 568, Willmar, MN 56201 
 
Crisis:  320.235.0962    Toll Free: 800.792.4210     Business:  320.235.0475   Fax:  320.235.1376 

 

        
 
May 6, 2019 
 
Ms. Kelsey Baker, Director        
Swift County 
301 14th St. N.  
Benson, MN 56215 
 
Dear Ms. Baker and the Swift County Commissioners, 
 

On behalf of Safe Avenues, I am enclosing a request for funding to strengthen individuals and families that have 
experienced domestic or sexual violence.  Safe Avenues served more than 1392 people in 2018 throughout our different 
programs.  Approximately 89 adults and 101 children stayed in our shelter facility in 2018.  Safe Avenues serves an 18 
county area which includes Swift County.  Safe Avenues is the primary service provider for domestic violence victims in 
the counties of Chippewa, Kandiyohi, Lac qui Parle, Meeker, Renville and Swift.  Safe Avenues is also the primary service 
provider for sexual assault victims in the counties of Chippewa, Kandiyohi, lac qui Parle, McLeod, Meeker, Renville, Swift 
and Yellow Medicine.   
 
I have enclosed a chart that demonstrates the services our agency provides to members of Swift County.  You can see 
that in 2018 Safe Avenues served 52 domestic violence and 22 sexual assault victims from Swift County.  The chart also 
demonstrates that at the half way point of 2019, Safe Avenues has already served 32 domestic violence and 7 sexual 
assault victims from Swift County.  If this upward trend continues, we will surpass the victim count of the previous year.  
This is a clear indication that our services are needed within the community.  
 
I am pleased to invite the Swift County Commissioners to continue to be a part of this important work.  Safe Avenues 
would like your assistance with an allocation of funding in the amount of $6,500 for 2020 to ensure that victims of 
domestic and sexual violence are able to receive needed services. 
 
Please let me know if you need further information or if you have any questions.  In addition, I welcome the opportunity 
to provide a tour of our shelter facility, if any of the commissioners have an interest.  Thank you for considering this 
request. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jen Johnson 
Executive Director 
320.235.0475 
 

5



2014-2018 Statistics for Safe Avenues’ Swift County Outreach Services 
 

   

 

37 
33 

63 

56 

45 

26 

3 1 
6 5 7 6 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019*

Domestic Violence Victim Survivors Served  

Women

Men

The Safe Avenues’ Advocate in Benson Provides: 

 Coverage for Swift County  

 Assistance with protective orders 

 Safety planning 

 Emergency supplies 

 Financial assistance 

 Housing & job search 

 Transportation to appointments & court  

 Support during sexual assault exams at the hospital 

General Stats: 

 1 in 3 women experience Domestic Violence  

 

 1 in 6 people experience Sexual Violence  

 

 60% of all victims do not report or seek help  

 

 Teens aged 14-18 are 4x more likely to 

experience sexual violence than any other age 

group 

2 

8 8 

10 

22 

7 

0 0 
1 

2 

14 

3 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019*

Sexual Violence Victim Survivors Served 

Number of Victims

Victims Under 18 yrs

* Half way through the year 

* Half way through the year 

6



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
July 2, 2019 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Swift County HRA Vicki Syverson 320-843-4676 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: Swift County HRA Board of Commissioners is requesting special 
consideration for spending up to $7,500 towards the demolition of the Vance house in DeGraff.  

 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Agenda No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

No  
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: The estimated cost of removing the contents of the Vance house is $4,000. That 
will drive the total cost of demolishing the house over the typical cost of $7,500.  The HRA Board recommends 
allowing additional levy funds on this project. The HRA will still expect two competitive bids, a 50:50 match with 
the local jurisdiction, not to exceed $7,500.  

 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST 
/ OTHER PARTIES INVOLVED? 

 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: n/a 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Daniel Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

None None 
 

 

7



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
July 2, 2019 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services Catie Lee 320-843-6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Consider approving resolutions for Families and Children Medicaid and MNCare and MSHO/MSC+ 
PrimeWest Health Proposal for 2020 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Regular board Click here to enter text. 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Yes Policy Required by DHS Licensing Recertification 
Division 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Four healthplans submitted RFP’s to be a Medicaid, MNCare Managed Care Organization in Swift 
County. All 4 plans were reviewed. PrimeWest Health’s response was far superior to those submitted 
by Blue Plus, Medica and UCare. The resolution request is to have PrimeWest be the sole MCO for 
Medicaid, and one of the 2 providers of MNCare (law requires 2 plans).  
 
We also had the opportunity to provide feedback for four submitted RFP’s for Minnesota Senior 
Health Options and Minnesota Senior Care Plus. Again PWH was far superior in their proposal and 
understanding the rural needs and the roles county government has in providing for its citizens. We 
recommend that PWH be considered the sole provider for these services. 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Approve 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a Click here to enter text. 
 

8



Swift County Board of Commissioners 

Resolution 19-07-31 

WHEREAS, The Minnesota Department of Human Services has published a Request for Proposals to provide 

health care services to recipients of Medical Assistance and MinnesotaCare in 80 Minnesota counties including 

Swift County; and 

WHEREAS, The Minnesota Department of Human Services has requested County evaluations and 

recommendations regarding the Request for Proposals from each respective county; and 

WHEREAS, PrimeWest, Medica, UCare and Blue Plus submitted proposals to provide managed health care 

services in Swift County; and 

WHEREAS, representatives of Swift County Human Services have reviewed and evaluated proposals; and 

WHEREAS, PrimeWest's proposal was found to be far superior than the others in meeting our needs, based on 

known provider partnerships in managing care and accountability for health, quality and consumer satisfaction. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Swift County Board of Commissioners supports the 

recommendation of the Swift County Human Service Director approving PrimeWest as the one and only 

managed care organization that should provide managed health care services for MA recipients in Swift County. 

THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the Swift County Board of Commissioners supports no 

more than two health plan choices, including PrimeWest Health, to be available for MinnesotaCare recipients. 

THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the Swift County Board of Commissioners believes that 

single-plan arrangements in rural counties does enhance integration and coordination of health care services, 

resulting in cost savings. 

Adopt by the Swift County Board of Commissioners on the 2nd Day of July, 2019. 

 

Gary Hendrickx, Chair 

Swift County Board of Commissioners Attest: 

 

Kelsey Baker, Administrator 

9



Swift County Board of Commissioners 

Resolution 19-07-32 

WHEREAS, The Minnesota Department of Human Services has published a Request for Proposals to provide 

health care services to recipients of Minnesota Senior Health Options (MSHO) and Minnesota Senior Care Plus 

(MSC+) in 87 Minnesota counties including Swift County; and 

WHEREAS, The Minnesota Department of Human Services has requested County evaluations and 

recommendations regarding the Request for Proposals from each respective county; and 

WHEREAS, PrimeWest, Medica, UCare and Blue Plus submitted proposals to provide managed health care 

services in Swift County; and 

WHEREAS, representatives of Swift County Human Services have reviewed and evaluated proposals; and 

WHEREAS, PrimeWest's proposal was found to be far superior than the others in meeting our needs, based on 

known provider partnerships in managing care and accountability for health, quality and consumer satisfaction. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Swift County Board of Commissioners supports the 

recommendation of the Swift County Human Service Director approving PrimeWest as the one and only 

managed care organization that should provide managed health care services for MSHO and MSC+ recipients 

in Swift County. 

THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the Swift County Board of Commissioners believes that 

single-plan arrangements in rural counties does enhance integration and coordination of health care services, 

resulting in cost savings. 

Adopt by the Swift County Board of Commissioners on the 2nd Day of July, 2019. 

 

Gary Hendrickx, Chair 

Swift County Board of Commissioners Attest: 

 

Kelsey Baker, Administrator 

10


	01 06-19-18 draft copy
	02 06-18-19 board of equalization draft
	03 board action request
	04 Swift funding request letter 2019
	04a Safe Avenues Statistics for Swift 2019
	05 Request for Board Action - Resolutions for procuremet 7.2.19
	05a Swift County 2019 procurement resolution
	05b Swift County 2019 procurement resolution MHSO MSC+



